
For example, the Genera Assembly had 
recommended 1 that Member States should submit 
information on their armaments to the Security 
Council so that the Council might know to what 
extent reductions could be made. No such 
statement had, however, been submitted to the 
Council by any Power. Moreover, opposition on 
the part of some of the great Powers had pre­
vented the Council from adopting resolutions 
urging the major Powers in particular to submit 
such statements. 

The draft resolution submitted by the USSR 
delegation called for a reduction of armaments by 
one-third, but that proposal was drafted in vague 
and general terms. 

The reduction of armaments should be propor­
tional and should fulfil certain technical require­
ments. It was, therefore, essential to ascertain 
the size of existing forces and the extent to which 
reductions could be made. Certain countries 
might have to reduce their armaments by one­
half, others by one-fourth and others might not 
have to make any reduction at all if the political 
situation of the world and that of the country 
concerned, as well as its situation, resources and 
requirements were taken into account. 

A plan taking all those factors into account 
should be prepared and the size of existing armed 
forces throughout the world should therefore be 
ascertained. Statements made by the various 
countries in that connexion should be subjected 
to inspection and investigation in order to verify 
their accuracy. 

The peoples of the world expected the General 
Assembly to implement Article 11 of the Charter. 
In present circumstances, a simple rejection of the 
USSR proposal would mean that the Assembly 
had nut taken any action in that direction. 

His delegation therefore submitted the draft 
resolution contained in document A/C.l/318 and 
emphasized the need for ending the deadlock in 
the Commission on Conventional Armaments. 

The meeting rose at 12.35 p.m. 

HUNDRED AND FIFTY-FIFTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Monday, 11 October 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairman : Mr. CosTA ou RELs (Bolivia). 

19. Continuation of the discussion on 
the prohibition of the atomic weapon 
and the reduction by one-third of 
the arn'laments and armed forces 
of the permanent members of the 
Security Council : item proposed by 
the Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics (A/658) 

:\Ir. BEen (Luxembourg) replied to criticisms 
which had been directed against his country on 

1 See Resolutions adopted by the General Assembly 
during the second part of its first session, resolutions 41 (1) 
and 42 (1). 

C'est ainsi que l' Assemblee generale a ado pte 
une recommandation1 selon Iaquelle Ies Etats 
Membres devaient fournir des renseignements au 
Conseil de securite au sujet de leurs armements 
afin que le Conseil put se rendre compte de Ia 
reduction qui pouvait etre operee. Or aucune 
Puissance n'a fait de declaration a cet egard 
au Conseil. Et !'opposition de certaines grandes 
Puissances a empeche !'adoption par le Conseil 
de resolutions enjoignant particulierement aux 
grandes Puissances de soumettre certaines 
informations. 

Le projet de resolution de la delegation de 
l'URSS prevoit une reduction d'un tiers des 
armements. Mais cette proposition est faite sous 
une forme vague et generale. 

Or la reduction des armements doit avoir un 
caractere proportionnel et repondre a certaines 
exigences techniques. ll importe done de deter­
miner queUes sont les forces existantes et queUes 
reductions peuvent etre operees. Il est possible 
que certains pays doivent reduire leurs forces 
de moitie, d'autres d'un quart, alon; que d'autres 
encore n'auraient pas de reduction a operer, 
compte tenu de la situation politique dans le 
monde, du pays lui-meme, de sa situation, de ses 
ressources et de ses necessites. 

Il importe d'etablir un plan dans lequel tons 
ces facteurs seront pris en consideration. Il faut 
done savoir quel est l'etat actuel des forces armees 
dans le monde. Les indications donnees par les 
differents :Etats devraient donner lieu a des 
inspections et enquetes destinees a verifier leur 
exactitude. 

Les peuples du monde attendent de l'Assemblee 
generale qu'elle donne suite a l' Article 11 de la 
Charte. Dans l'etat actuel des chases, le rejet pur 
et simple de la proposition de l'Union sovietique 
signi fi erai t que l' Asscmblee gcnerale n' a pris 
aucune action en ce domainc. 

La deh~gation de la Syrie presente done son 
projet de resolution (A jC.1/318). II convient de 
mettre fin a !'impasse dans laquelle se trouve la 
Commission des armements de type classique. 

La seance est levee a 12 h. 35. 

CENT-CINQUANTE-CINQUIEME 
SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le fundi 11 octobre 1948, a 10 h. 30. 

President: M. CosTA ou RELS (Bolivie). 

19. Suite de la discussion sur }'inter­
diction de 1' arme atomique et la 
reduction d'un tiers des armements 
et forces armees des me1nbres 
permanents du Conseil de secu­
rite: point propo~e .par l'U~i~x;t des 
Repuhliques soc1ahstes sov1etlques 
(A/658) 

M. BECH (Luxembourg) repond aux critiques 
adressees a son pays du fait de sa pm 

1 Voir Jes Resolutions adoptees par l'Asser 
pendant la sccondc partie de sa premier 
Juti ons 41 (I) et 42 (I). 

111 



account of its participation in the Brussels Pact. 
He considered that his country's participation in 
a pact for mutual security against possible 
aggression was proof in itself of Luxembourg's 
desire for peace. Luxembourg was proud to be 
associated with the United Kingdom and others 
in the \Vestern Union and he stressed that such 
an agreement would be unnecessary if States 
co-operated under the Charter to abolish fear and 
promote the welfare of all. As long as that unity 
did not exist, the traditional type of alliance would 
still continue. 

Mr. Bech considered that after the experience 
of the past thirty years, it would be a dream to 
hope for disarmament without first creating moral 
disarmament. Discussion in the First Committee 
showed that confidence had not been established. 
Those who wished to disarm must first bring about 
peace and harmony. The experience of the 
League of Nations had shown that the road to 
disarmament was difficult. Representatives 
should begin by reducing the virulence of their 
speeches. 

Mr. MANUILSKY (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) said that the three proposals presented 
by the delegation of the USSR (A/658) at the 
third session of the Assembly should be taken 
together. It was unthinkable to conceive of 
disarmament which did not include atomic 
weapons and it was the artificial distinction made 
by the Anglo-American bloc between conven­
tional armaments and weapons of mass destruc­
tion which had wrecked the Assembly's resolution 
of 14 December 1946. 1 

The policy of the USSR had been made clear 
in Mr. Molotov's proposal for the general regula­
tion and reduction of armaments of 29 October 
19462 and in the further draft resolutions relating 
to atomic energy submitted on 19 June 1946 and 
11 June 1947. 3 In supporting his proposal before 
the Assembly in 1946, Mr. Molotov had said tJwt 
after the ex-enemy States had been disarmed, the 
time would come for general disarmament which 
would prove that the United Nations was working 
for peace and would put an end to the activities 
of warmongering groups. He had also said that 
if States increased their arms, then the world 
would be justified in doubting the sincerity of 
lheir peaceful aims. 

That statement applied particularly to the 
present circumstances when according to the 
United Stales News and World Report, the United 
States was raising its military expenditures from 
10,700 million dollars for the year 1947-1948 to 
22,500 million dollars in the year 1952-1953. The 
appropriations during the current year would be 
greater than during the nineteen years preceding 
the war. Fifty per cent of every industry in the 

1 See Resolutions adopted by tlze General Assembly 
during the second part of its first session, resolution 41 (I). 

2 See Oflicial R ecords of tlze second part of tlze first sess ion 
of the General Assembly, 42nd plenary meeting. 

a See Oflicial Records of tlze Atomic Energy Commission, 
Third Year, Special Supplement, Third Report to the 
Security Council, pages 18 and 22. 

au Pacte de Bruxelles. II considere que Ia parti­
cipation de son pays a un pacte de securite 
mutuelle contre une agression eventuelle est Ia 
preuve meme du desir de paix du Luxembourg. 
Ce dernier est fier d'etre assode au Royaume­
Uni et aux autres pays de l'Union Occidentale; 
M. Bech souligne qu'un tel accord serait inutile 
si les Etats collaboraient dans l'esprit de la 
Charte a abolir Ia peur et a favoriser le bien-etre 
general. Tant que cette unite n'existe pas, les 
alliances de type traditionnel doivent etre 
maintenues. 

M. Bech pense qu'apres !'experience des 
trente dernieres annees, il serait chimerique 
d'esperer Ie dcsarmement materiel sans realiser 
au prealable le desarmement moral. Le debat 
au sein de la Premiere Commission montre que 
Ia confiance n'a pas ete etablie. Ceux qui desirent 
desarmer doivent d'abord amener Ia paix et 
I' harmonic. L' experience de Ia Societe des Nations 
a montre que Ia route du desarmement etait 
malaisee. Les representants devraient en premier 
lieu rcduire la virulence de leurs propos. 

M. MANUILSKY (Republique socialiste sovil:\tique 
d'Ukraine) declare que les trois propositions 
presentees par la delegation de l'URSS a la 
troisieme session de l' Assemblee constituent un 
tout (A/658). On ne peut concevoir un desar­
mement qui ne s'appliquerait pas aux armes 
atomiques, et si Ia resolution de l'Assemblee 
du 14 decembre 19461 a ete torpillee, cela est 
du a la distinction artificielle etablie par le bloc 
anglo-americain entre les armes de type classique 
et celles de destruction massive. 

La politique de l'URSS a ete precisee dans la 
proposition de M. Molotov en date du 29 Octobre 
19462, prevoyant Ia reglementation et Ia reduction 
generales des armements, ainsi que dans les 
nouveaux projets de resolution concernant 
l'energie atomique, deposes les 19 juin 1946 et 
11 juin 19473• En defendant sa propositio_n 
devant l' Assemblee en 1946, M. Molotov a d1t 
qu'apres le desarmement des pays ex-ennemis, 
le temps viendrait oil l'on devrait proceder au 
desarmement general, en prouvant ainsi que 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies travaille a 
etablir la paix, et en mettant fin aux activites 
des groupes bellicistes. II a egalement indique 
que si certains Etats augmentaient leurs 
armements, le monde pourrait, a juste titre, 
mettre en doute Ia sincerite de leurs intentions 
pacifiques. 

Cela s'applique tout particulierement a la 
situation actuelle, puisque, d'apres le United 
States News et le World Report, les Etats-Unis 
sont en train de porter leurs depenses militaires 
de 10.700 millions de dollars pour l'annee 1947-
1948 a 22.500 millions de dollars pour l'annee 
1952-1953. Les credits pour l'annee en cours 
seraient superieurs a ceux des dix-neuf annees 
qui ont precede la guerre. Chaque industrie aux 

1 Voir Ies Resolutions adoptees par l' Assemblee generate 
pendant !a sccondc partie de sa premiere session, reso­
lution 41 (1). 

• Voir les Documents ofliciels de la seconde partie de la 
premiere session de l' Assemblee generale, 42• seance pleniere. 

a Voir !es Proces-verbaux officiels de la Commission de 
l'energie .atomique, troisiem~ anne_e, s_upph~ment special, 
troisieme rapport au Conse1l de secunte, pages 18 et 22. 

112 



United States was burdened with military orders, 
and during 1948, military aid to foreign States 
totalled 7,000 million dollars in contrast to 
19 million during 1939. The significance of those 
figures was confirmed by the statement of 
Mr. Bevin before the General Assembly (144th 
plenary meeting) that the United Kingdom was 
diverting resources from reconstruction to its 
military programme. 

From the beginning of the United Nations, no 
act had enhanced the prestige of the Organization 
move than the USSR proposal of October 1946 
which became the basis for the Assembly's resolu­
tion of 14 December 1946. The people of the 
world saw how the USSR submitted practical 
proposals which would strengthen trust and lead 
to a feeling of security. That recommendation 
was adopted unanimously 1 because no State was 
willing to face world-wide disapproval by opposing 
it outright. Nonetheless, the USSR was aware 
that the draft submitted2 would be opposed by 
certain financial monopolies and expansionist 
groups and could not close its eyes to the expe­
rience of the League of Nations. Since the 
adoption of that resolution, 3 the Anglo-American 
bloc had utilized all the manreuvres which it had 
employed to frustrate all efforts toward disarma­
ment. Even the arguments now being used were 
virtually identical with those which had been 
used against the USSR proposal at the Disarma­
ment Conference. Sir Hartley Shawcross was 
imitating Lord Cushendon when he described the 
USSR proposals as propaganda designed to hide 
the real aims. The present-day Cushendons 
seemed to have learned nothing from and forgotten 
nothing of the miserable experience of the League 
of Nations. Those who said they did not know 
what was happening behind the borders of the 
USSR should remember the fateful results of the 
League of Nations policy: the growth of arma­
ments which wrecked the basis of world security 
and laid the basis for the Second World War. 

Mr. Manuilsky detected a division of labour 
between the United States and its junior partners. 
It was well known that the United States favoured 
an armaments race and was a centre of propa­
ganda in favour of a third war. The United 
States was now endeavouring to avoid the glare 
of world public opinion and permitting other 
delegations such as the United Kingdom and 
Belgium to make the most aggressive speeches. 
The delegation of the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist 
Republic well understood the meaning of that 
division of labour. 

Mr. Manuilsky considered that the speech of 
Sir Hartley Shawcross (154 th meeting) had been 
an attempt to lower the level of the discussion. It 

1 See Official Records of the second part of the first session 
of the General Assembly, 63rd plenary meeting. 

2 Ibid., 42nd plenary meeting. 
3 See Resolutions adopted by the General Assembly 

during the second part of its flrst session, resolution 41 (I). 

Etats-Unis travaille a 50 pour 100 pour les 
commandes de guerre, et au cours de l'annee 1948 
l'aide militaire apportee a des Etats etrangers 
s'est elevee a sept milliards de dollars contre 
dix-neuf millions en 1939. La signification que 
revetent ces chiffres a ete soulignee par M. Bevin 
lorsqu'il a declare devant 1' Assemblee generale 
(144e seance pleniere) que le Royaume-Uni 
affectait a son programme militaire des ressources 
qui avaient ete destinees a la reconstruction. 

Depuis le debut de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies, rien n'a autant renforce le prestige de 
!'Organisation que la proposition faite par l'URSS 
en octobre 1946 et qui a servi de base a la reso­
lution de l'Assemblee en date du 14 decembre 
1946. Les peuples du monde entier ont constate 
le caractere pratique des propositions presentees 
par l'URSS en vue de renforcer la confiance 
et de creer un climat de securite. Cette recom­
mandation a ete adoptee a l'unanimite1, car 
aucun Etat ne desirait encourir la desapprobation 
mondiale en s'opposant ouvertement a la 
proposition. Neanmoins, I'URSS savait que son 
projet2 se heurterait a !'opposition de certains 
monopoles financiers et de groupes a tendance 
expansionniste ; de plus, elle ne pouvait oublier 
!'experience de la Societe des Nations. Depuis 
!'adoption de cette resolution3 le bloc anglo­
americain s'est livre a toutes les manceuvres 
auxquelles il avait deja eu recours pour rendre 
inoperants les efforts pour le desarmement. Les 
arguments memes que 1' on invoque en ce moment 
sont a peu pres identiques a ceux dont on usait 
pour combattre la proposition de l'URSS a la 
Conference du desarmement. Sir Hartley 
Shawcross imite Lord Cushendon lorsqu'il qualifie 
les propositions de l'URSS de propagande destinee 
a cacher ses veritables visees. Les Cushendon 
d'aujourd'hui semblent n'avoir rien appris de la 
triste experience de la Societe des Nations et 
n'en avoir non plus rien oublie. Ceux qui disent 
qu'ils ignorent ce qui se passe derriere les 
frontieres de l'URSS devraient se rappeler les 
funestes resultats auxquels a abouti la politique 
de la Societe des Nations : la course aux 
armements, qui detruisit les bases de la securite 
mondiale et prepara la seconde guerre mondiale. 

M. Manuilsky constate qu'il y a repartition 
de taches entre les Etats-Unis et leurs partenaires 
mineurs. Il est bien connu que les Etats-Unis 
favorisent la course aux armements et sont au 
centre de la pro pagan de que I' on mene en vue 
d'une troisieme guerre. Ils s'efforcent en ce 
moment de rester dans l' ombre et laissent a 
d'autres delegations, celles de la Belgique et du 
Royaume-Uni notamment, le soin de faire les 
discours les plus agressifs devant !'opinion 
mondiale. La delegation de la Republique socia­
liste sovietique d'Ukraine saisit fort bien le sens 
de cette division du travail. 

M. Manuilsky estime que le discours d: 
Sir Hartley Shawcross (154e seanc.e) ,a. cherche 
a abaisser le debat a un niveau mfeneur. On 

1 Voir les Documents officiels de la seconde partie de la 
premiere session de l' Assemblee generale, 63• seance p!eniere. 

2 Ibid, 42• seance pleniere. 
3 Voir les Resolutions ado plies par l' AssembU~ gener;ale 

pendant la seconde partie de sa premiere sesswn, reso­
lution 41 (1.). 

113 

8 



was understandable to be angered by persons but 
not hy the truth and facts. To refuse to accept 
the truth was to avow fear of the truth and prefer­
ence for untruth. The United Kingdom repre­
sentative utterly distorted the facts in alleging 
that the USSR draft resolution (AJC.1j310) was 
unacceptable because it was only a declarative 
resolution. The falseness of his argument was 
shown by the statement that the ussn was 
rejecting control. In fact the USSH draft reso­
lution proposed the establishment of a control 
body in its last paragraph. That was not an 
accidentnl proposal ; it derived direclly from the 
position of the USSil as stated by Generalissimo 
Stalin on 23 October HJ.!G. The need for control 
had been frequently iterated hy the USSR dele­
gation both in the Atomic Energy Commission 
and in the Commission on Conventional Anna­
ments. Those were facts which disproved the 
thesis of the United Kingdom that the USSR 
desired to circumvent control. Indeed, it was 
·well-known that the representatives of the Anglo­
American bloc had rejected the USSR proposal of 
June HH7 for the establishment of control over 
atomic energy because the United States wanted 
to attain uncontrolled production of atomic 
weapons. Similarly, the USSR proposal for the 
establishment of an international control system 
over conventional armaments was rejected because 
the Anglo-American bloc did not wish armaments 
to be reduced. 

One of the principal reasons given for rejecting 
the USSR proposal relating to atomic energy 
(AJC.1j310) was the unsettled question of whether 
control or prohibition of atomic weapons should 
come first. The USSR delegation had now 
resolved that problem by proposing the adoption 
of two simultaneous conventions. However, by 
rejecting that offer of co-operation, the \Vestern 
Powers had assumed full responsibility for the 
usc of atomic energy for warlike purposes. 
Now the United Kingdom was asking that the 
USSR make further concessions. But, said 
Mr. Manuilsky, that was not a gesture of co­
operation ; rather it should be otherwise described. 
If the opponents of the USSR proposals were 
prepared to examine the work of the Commission 
on Conventional Armaments, they would see that 
the USSR had proposed on 3 October 1947 
(SJC.3JSC.3/9) a plan which would have placed 
disarmament on a practical basis. Items 1 and 2 
of that plan answered the question of the United 
Kingdom representative whether military poten­
tial had been taken into account by the USSR. 
The USSR plan not only did that but also took 
into account all those practical problems which it 
had been accused of ignoring. The USSR plan 
was broader, more profound and more viable than 
that adopted by the majority. 

The onus for the failure of the Commission on 
Conventional Armaments must be borne by the 
Anglo-American bloc, which had made clear its 
intent to wreck the Assembly's resolution of 

peut se facher contre les personnes, mais non 
contre la verite et les faits. Ceux qui se revoltent 
cor:tre la vcri~e. ?t les faits montrent qu'ils 
crmgnent la vente et preferent son contraire. 
En pretendant que le projet de resolution de 
l'URSS (AJC.1/310) est inacceptable, parce qu'il 
ne constitue qu'une resolution sur le papier, le 
representant du Tioyaume-Uni a completement 
deformc les faits. En affirmant que l'URSS 
refuse le controle, il n'a fait que mettre en 
evidence Ia faussetc de son argument. En fait, 
le projet de resolution de l'URSS propose dans 
son dernier parugraphe Ia creation d'un organe 
de controle. Cela n'est pas un hasard; cette 
proposition derive directement de Ia declaration 
faite le 23 octolJre 1946 par le generalissime 
Slaline concernant !'attitude de l'URSS. La 
deiegation de l'URSS a frequemment souligne 
Ia nccessitc du controle, tant a Ia Commission 
de l'cnergie atomique qu'a Ia Commission des 
armements de type classique. Cet ensemble de 
faits dement Ia these du Royaume-Uni selon 
laquelle l'URSS cherche a se derober au contr~le. 
D'ailleurs, tout Ie monde sait que, parce qu'ils 
dcsiraient pouvoir produire sans aucune 
restriction lcs armes atomiques, Ies representants 
du bloc anglo-americain ont rejete la proposition 
de l'URSS, faite en juin 1947, et qui tendait a 
ctablir un controle de l'energie atomique. De 
meme, Ia proposition de l'URSS en vue de 
l'Ctablissement d'un systeme de controle inter­
national sur les armements de types classique 
a ete repoussce, et cela parce que le bloc anglo­
americain ne tenait pas a une reduction des 
armements. 

L'une des principales raisons donnees au rej~t 
de la proposition de l'URSS relative a l'energ~e 
atomique (A/C.1/310) etait que l'on ne sava1~ 
s~il fallait accorder le priorite au controle o~ a 
!'interdiction des armes atomiques. La delegatiOn 
de l'URSS a rcsolu ce probleme en proposant 
!'adoption de deux conventions simultanees. 
Cependant, en repoussant cette offre de 
cooperation, les Puissances occidentales ont 
assume toute Ia responsabilite de l'emploi de 
l'energie atomique a des fins de guerre. Le 
Royaume-Uni demande maintenant a l'URSS 
de faire de nouvelles concessions. Cela ne 
constitue pas, scion M. Manuilsky, un geste de 
cooperation, mais merite une autre qualification. 
Si les adversaires des propositions de l'URSS 
veulent bien prendre la peine d'examiner les 
travaux de Ia Commission des armements de 
type classique, ils verront que, le 3 octobre 
1947 (S/C.3/SC.3/9) l'URSS a propo~e un pla_n 
qui, s'il avait ete pris en consideratiOn, a~na1t 
place Ie desarmement sur une base pratique. 
Les points 1 et 2 de ce plan repondent a la 
question posee par le representant du Royaume­
Uni et qui etait de savoir si l'URSS a tenu compte 
du potentiel militaire. Le plan de l'URSS ne se 
contente pas de le faire, il ~ient egale~ent compte 
de tous les problemes d ordre pratique qu on 
!'accuse de negliger. Il. est plus l.arg~ et plu~ 
viable, il va aussi plus 1om que celm qu a adopte 
la majorite . . 

La responsabilite de l'echec essuye pa: la 
Commission des armements de type class1que 
doit etre attribuee au bloc anglo-ameri~ai!l, qui. 
des la premiere seance de la CommiSSIOn, a. 

114 



14 December 1946 from the very first meeting of 
the Commission. All the discussion which ensued 
and the revised draft resolution introduced by the 
United Kingdom on 7 April 1948 and embodying 
the amendments submitted by the United States 
and Canada (S/C.3/SC.3/15) which was adopted on 
12 August 1948 only served to confirm the position 
which had been consistently espoused by the 
Anglo-American bloc. No attempt at co-opera­
tion with the USSR had been made and no 
proposals for joint action submitted by the latter 
were adopted. The United Kingdom draft reso­
lution (A/C.l/319) now submitted was merely a 
restatement of that position. It again insisted 
upon the re-establishment of international confi­
dence as a prerequisite for disarmament, though 
the USSR disarmament proposals (A/658) would 
in themselves decrease international tension and 
re-establish the conditions essential for inter­
national co-operation. Their adoption would 
mean a rebirth of international confidence. 
Confidence was to be established not by mere 
declaration but by concrete acts, including the 
stringent implementation of existing agreements 
such as those of Potsdam and Yalta. Mr. 
Manuilsky reminded the Committee that history 
showed that insistence upon the establishment of 
" confidence " was a formula which had always 
been used by those who desired to justify an 
armaments race. Those who now insisted upon 
it were sowing the seeds of disorder. Could 
anyone imagine that confidence and trust would 
be increased by the establishment Df a bloc hostile 
to the USSR? That could only disrupt the 
United Nations. 

Mr. Manuilsky found the other prerequisites to 
disarmament which had been put forward in the 
Commission for Conventional Armaments and its 
working committee to be equally suspicious. He 
believed that they incriminated their authors and 
were stumbling blocks to disarmament. For 
example, the Anglo-American bloc called for the 
establishment of an international police force but, 
as was well known, it was that very group which 
had prevented progress in the Military Staff Com­
mittee. In that Committee, the USSR had 
submitted a just and equitable proposal for the 
contribution by the great Powers of equal num­
bers of troops and armaments. The rejection of 
that proposal could not be justified. Mr. Man­
uilsky believed that the United States had 
insisted upon a larger force in order to justify its 
own armaments boom. 

A further example was the proposal submitted 
by the Anglo-American bloc in April and May of 
19481 to suspend the work of the Atomic Energy 
Commission. The USSR and the Ukrainian 
Soviet Socialist Republic had opposed that move 
as designed to wreck the implementation of the 
General Assembly's resolution of 24 January 
1946.2 Now the Anglo-American bloc was contin­
uing its organized sabotage in the attempt to 

1 See Official Records of the Atomic Energy Commission, 
Third Year, Special Supplement, Third Report to the 
Security Council. 

a .see Resolutions adopted by tht General Assembly 
durmg the first part of its first session, page 9. 

manifeste dairement son intention de torpiller 
la resolution de I' Assemblee generale en date 
du 14 decembre 1946. Toute Ia suite de la dis­
cussion, ainsi que Ie projet de resolution amende 
presente par le Royaume-Uni le 7 avril 1948, 
en reprenant les amendements des Etats-Unis 
et du Canada (SJC.3/S.C.3/15) et qui a ete 
adopte le 12 aout 1948, ne font que confirmer 
!'attitude que n'a cesse d'adopter le bloc anglo­
americain. On n'a fait aucune tentative de 
collaborer avec l'URSS, on n'a adopte aucune 
des propositions que l'URSS a presentees en vue 
d'une action commune. Le projet de resolution 
propose aujourd'hui par le Royaume-Uni 
(A/C.1f319) ne fait que reaffirmer cette position. 
Il insiste a nouveau sur Ia necessite de restaurer 
la confiance entre les nations avant de desarmer, 
bien que les projets de desarmement proposes 
par l'URSS (A/658) devraient suffire a eux seuls 
a diminuer la tension internationale et a ramener 
les conditions necessaires a la cooperation entre 
les nations. L'adoption de ces projets ferait 
renaltre la confiance internationale. La confiance 
ne s'instaure pas par de simples declarations, 
mais bien par des actes concrets, y compris la 
stride application des accords existants, tels que 
ceux de Potsdam et de Yalta. L'histoire montre, 
dit M. Manuilsky que cette « confiance » reclamee 
avec tant d'obstination est une formule qu'ont 
toujours employee ceux qui cherchaient a justifier 
la course aux armements. Ceux qui insistent 
aujourd'hui sur ce point sement le desordre. 
Peut-on imaginer que la creation d'un bloc 
hostile a l'URSS contribuera a augmenter la 
confiance ? Cela ne pourra que detruire !'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies. 

M. Manuilsky trouve egalement suspectes les 
conditions preliminaires au desarmement, dont 
il a ete question a la Commission des armements 
de type classique et au sein de son Comite de 
travail. Il croit que ces conditions incriminent 
leurs auteurs et constituent des obstacles au 
desarmement. C'est ainsi que le bloc anglo­
americain, s'il demande la creation d'une force 
internationale de police, n'en a pas moins, comme 
tout le monde le sait, empeche tout progres au 
sein du Comite d'etat-major. L'URSS, tout au 
contraire, a soumis a ce Comite une proposition 
equitable et juste, d'apres laquelle les grandes 
Puissances auraient du fournir un nombre egal 
de troupes et d'armements. Le rejet de cette 
proposition ne peut se justifier. M. Manuilsky 
croit que si les Etats-Unis ont insiste pour obtenir 
une force plus grande, c'est afin de justifier leur 
propre rearmement. 

Autre exemple : la proposition, faite par le 
bloc anglo-americain en avril et en mai 19481, 
de suspendre l'activite de la Commission de 
l'energie atomique. L'URSS et la Republique 
socialiste sovietique d'Ukraine se sont opposees 
a cette proposition, considerant qu'elle etait 
dirigee contre Ia mise en application de la 
resolution de l'Assemblee generale en date du 
24 janvier 19462. Maintenant, le sabotage organise 

1 Voir les Proces-uerbaux officiels de Ia Commission 
de l'energie atomique, troisieme annee, ~upplement 
special, troisieme rapport au conseil de secur1te, 
~oir les Resolutions adoptees par l'Assembtee generale 

pendant la premiere partie de sa premiere session, page 9. 

115 



ensure the defeat of the USSR proposal on the 
reduction of armaments. 

In spite of the speeches which were being made, 
there could be no doubt of the real desires of the 
Anglo-American group. The truth was that 
adoption of the USSR proposal would mean a 
saving to the United States taxpayer in the year 
19-i8-1949 of about 5,000 million dollars. The 
vast sum being expended on military production 
by the Western PO\vers could more usefully be 
diverted to reconstruction. The reduction of the 
military budgets of the five permanent members 
of the Security Council would help the small and 
medium-sized countries, particularly those which 
had been devastated during the war, to set their 
finances in order and to improve their economic 
situation and the standard of living of their 
people. The adoption of the USSR draft resolu­
tion would help to re-establish international trust 
and security and form a solid foundation for the 
future development of all States. Consequently, 
the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic, basing 
itself on the facts, would .wholeheartedly support 
the USSR proposal as a blow against warmongers 
and a step towards peace. 

Mr. KARDELJ (Yugoslavia) noted that despite 
expressed devotion to the cause of peace, peaceful 
proposals such as that of the Soviet Union 
(A/658) were being obstructed by the majority 
faction in the United Nations. Unlike Sir 
Hartley Shawcross, he found this proposal wholly 
realistic. It had been received in silence only 
because to implement it would mean a decisive 
step toward peace. That was not to the liking of 
certain Governments, which did not seek to reach 
agreed decisions in the United Nations. This stand 
was characteristic of the British and other repre­
sentatives who made not the least attempt to meet 
the Soviet Union on the question of disarmament. 

This attitude of the majority, which was 
connected with their responsibility for the present 
general state of affairs, was determined by the 
changes in American policy to which Mr. Vy­
shinsky had referred. The profits of American 
companies had increased in 1947 over 1946 by 
33 per cent ; the foreign investments of the United 
States had increased in 1947 by 83 per cent, 
compared with an increase of only 24 per cent in 
investments at home. Leaders of American 
monopolies, strengthened during the war, wished 
lO deprive other nations of their economic inde­
pendence and by economic power to impose their 
political will. American political and military 
interventions occurred wherever the democratic 
masses of the people made their power felt. 

Freedom-loving nations could not accept ,the 
alternative of " an American peace or no peace 

par le bloc anglo-americain continue pour faire 
rcjeter la proposition de l'URSS sur Ia reduction 
des armements. 

En depit des discours prononces par ses 
reprcsentants, les intentions reelles du groupe 
anglo-americain ne font aucun doute. II n'en est 
pas moins vrai que !'adoption de la proposition 
de l'URSS signifierait pour les contribuables 
americains une economic de 5 milliards de 
dollars environ pour l'annee 1948-1949. Les 
sommes cnormes consacrees par les Puissances 
occidcntales a leur production militaire pourraient 
etre employees bien plus utilement a la recons­
truction. Si les cinq membres permanents du 
Conseil de securite reduisaient leurs budgets 
militaircs, cela aiderait les nations petites et 
moyennes, et notamment celles qui ont ete 
dcvastees pendant Ia guerre, a mettre de l'ordre 
dans leurs finances et a relever leur economie, 
ainsi que le niveau de vie de leurs peuples. 
L'adoption du projet de resolution de l'URSS 
contribuerait a faire renaitre Ia confiance et 
Ia sccurite internationales et constituerait une 
fondation solide pour le developpement futur 
de tous les Etats. Aussi le representant de Ia 
RSS d'Ukraine, dont l'attitude est dictee par 
les faits, appuie-t-il sans reserve la proposition 
de l'URSS qui porte un coup aux fauteurs de 
guerre et marque un progres vers Ia paix. 

M. KARDELJ (Yougoslavie) constate qu'en 
depit des protestations de devouement a la cause 
de la paix, des propositions pacifiques telles que 
celles de l'URSS (A/658) soulevent !'opposition 
du clan que forme Ia majorite au sein des Nations 
Unies. II ne partage pas Ia maniere de voir .de 
Sir Hartley Shawcross et estime au contram 
que cette proposition est realiste. L'accueil reserve 
qu'a rer;u la proposition montre simplem~nt 
qu'elle marque un progres decisif vers Ia pru.x. 
Cela ne plait pas a certains Gouverne~ents, P.eu 
soucieux de voir !'Organisation des Nations Umes 
parvenir a des decisions prises d'un commun 
accord. 

Cette attitude est caracteristique de la part 
des representants du Royaume-Uni et d'autres 
pays qui ne font pas le moindre effort pour se 
rapprocher de l'URSS. Cette position prise par 
Ia majorite n'est pas sans rapports ~vee. Ia 
responsabilite qui lui incombe pour la situatwn 
generale actuelle. Elle a etc determine~ . par 
les changements intervenus dans . la pohtiq~e 
americaine et auxquels M. Vychmsky a fait 
allusion. Les benefices des societes americaines 
ont ete en 1947 de 33 pour 100 superieurs .a 
ceux de 1946 ; les investissements des Etats-Ums 
a l'etranger ont augmente, en 1947, de 83 pour 10?, 
alors que les investissements aux Etats-UIDs 
meme n'ont augmente que de 24 pour 100. Les 
dirigeants des monopoles americains, monopoles 
qui ont etc renforces durant Ia gue~re, _cherchent 
a priver les autres nations de leur mdepe~dance 
economique et, par le moyen de la pmssanc: 
economique, a imposer a ces n~~ions leur :V?lo.nte 
politique. Les interventions.pohtiques et mili~aires 
des Etats-Unis se prodmsent partout o~ les 
masses democratiques du peuple font senbr la 
preuve de leur puissance. . . 

Les nations eprises de hb~rte n.e. p~uvent 
accepter Ie dilemme « une pmx amencame ou 

116 



at all " and putting the question in that way 
inevitably led to tension. The aggressive trend 
in the policy of the United States and other 
countries contradicted the spirit and letter of the 
post-war agreements signed by the Allies. The 
difficulty lay not in those agreements but in the 
radical change towards intimidation and pressure 
which had occurred in the foreign policy of the 
United States since. This was the cause for the 
refusal of the Western delegations to pursue a 
constructive policy of co-operation with the 
USSR in the field of disarmament. Mr. McNeil's 
argument tha.t distrust of the USSR presented 
agreement with its disarmament proposal had 
been refuted by Mr. Vyshinsky and by the whole 
history of the USSR. The USSR had consistently 
pursued a policy of peaceful co-operation while 
the Western Powers had consistently proved by 
their numerous anti-Soviet interventions that they 
did not wish to co-operate peacefully with the 
Soviet Union. The leading group of the majority 
was returning to its former hostile policy against 
the USSR, although the USSR had continued its 
policy of peace as demonstrated by its proposals 
at the first two sessions of the General Assembly, 
its fight for the swift implementation of inter­
national obligations, the withdrawal of Soviet 
troops from Iran and Korea, and its latest 
proposal for the reduction of armaments. The 
policy of opposition to the USSR fostered antag­
onisms in international political relations and 
strengthened anti-democratic fascist elements. The 
bitter experience of World War II showed where 
such a policy led. 

Mr. Kardelj emphasized that Yugoslavia and 
the other peoples' democracies had never been 
under the control of the USSR. There was there­
fore nothing against which to defend them, 
whereas Western Europe where controls were 
being established by others than the USSR stood 
in need of such defence. 

The pretext of distrust of the Soviet Union was 
but an unconvincing justification of an aggressive 
policy against peaceful co-operation. The repre­
sentatives of the leading countries of the majority 
faction should show their devotion to the cause of 
peace in actual practice. Mr. Vyshinsky had 
convincingly criticized the thesis of " security 
first " and " disarmament afterwards " which 
had enabled Hitler and other aggressors to discard 
all disarmament proposals. To show the danger 
of a similar development today, Mr. Kardelj 
quoted statements by Mr. Marshall and Mr. Austin 
to the effect that military strength was of imme­
diate and major importance in the present world 
situation. In his opinion such policies were at 
the root of the present international tension. He 
recalled a statement by the late President Roose­
velt in 1941 that freedom from fear meant a 
worldwide reduction of armaments so that no 
nation would be in a position to commit aggression 

pas de paix du tout ''· Poser la question de cette 
maniere provoque inevitablement une tension. 
La tendance agressive qui se manifeste dans la 
politique des Etats-Unis et d'autres pays est 
contraire a !'esprit et a la lettre des accords 
signes par les Allies apres la guerre. Ce n'est pas 
dans ces accords que git la difficulte ; elle reside 
plutot dans le changement radical qui est inter­
venu depuis lors dans Ia politique etrangere des 
Etats-Unis devenue une politique d'intimidation 
et de pression. C'est a cette cause qu'il faut 
attribuer le refus des delegations occidentales 
de poursuivre une politique constructive de 
cooperation avec l'URSS en matiere de desar­
mement. M. McNeil soutient que Ia mefiance 
qu'inspire l'URSS empeche d'arriver a un accord 
sur Ia proposition de desarmement de l'URSS : 
cette these a ete refutee par M. Vychinsky et 
se trouve dementie par toute l'histoire de l'URSS. 
L'URSS a toujours poursuivi une politique de 
cooperation pacifique alors que les Puissances 
occidentales n'ont cesse de demontrer par les 
nombreuses interventions qu'elles ont dirigees 
contre l'Union sovietique qu'elles n'etaient pas 
desireuses de cooperer d'une maniere pacifique 
avec l'URSS. Le groupe qui mene Ia majorite 
revient a sa politique anterieure d'hostilite a 
l'URSS, alors que celle-ci a poursuivi sa politique 
de paix, comme en temoignent les propositions 
presentees par elle lors des deux premieres sessions 
de I' Assemblee generale, les efforts tentes par elle 
pour que soient executees sans tarder les obli­
gations internationales, le retrait des troupes 
sovietiques d'Iran et de Coree, et la proposition 
qu' elle a presentee tout recemment pour Ia 
reduction des armements. La politique d'oppo­
sition a l'URSS a encourage les antagonismes 
dans les relations politiques internationales et a 
donne un regain de force aux elements fascistes 
et antidemocratiques. L'experience amere de la 
deuxieme Guerre mondiale a montre ou menait 
une telle politique. 

M. Kardelj souligne que ni la Yougoslavie, ni 
les autres democraties populaires, n'ont jamais 
ete sous Ia tutelle de l'URSS. Aussi n'ont-elles 
besoin d' etre clef endues contre quoi que ce so it, 
alors que !'Europe occidentale, ou d'autres que 
l'URSS installent leur domination, a besoin d'une 
telle defense. 

La mefiance qu'inspirerait l'URSS n'est qu'un 
pretexte fallacieux pour justifier une politique 
agressive dirigee contre une cooperation pacifique. 
Les representants des pays qui sont a Ia tete du 
clan majoritaire devraient donner des preuves 
concretes de leur devouement a la cause de la 
paix. M. Vychinsky a refute a l'aide d'arguments 
convaincants Ia these de la << securite d'abord '' 
et du (( desarmement ensuite ll, qui a permis a 
Hitler et a d'autres agresseurs d'ecarter toutes 
propositions de desarmement. Pour montrer le 
risque actuel d'une evolution semblable des 
evenements, M. Kardelj cite des declarations 
de M. Marshall et de M. Austin sur !'importance 
immediate et preponderante de Ia force militaire 
dans la situation actuelle du monde. A ses yeux, 
la politique de ces pays est a l'origine de la 
tension internationale actuelle. Il rappelle un 
discours prononce par le President Roosevelt 
en 1941 ou celui-ci disait que liberer le monde 

117 



and he noted that the United States represen­
tatives today asserted just the contrary. 

The arguments of Mr. McNeil (153rd meeting) 
and Sir Hartley Shawcross (154th meeting) that 
the USSR proposal would favour the USSR which 
had disarmed the least, were unconvincing and 
contradictory. The important fact, however, was 
that the rejection of the USSR proposal led to the 
conclusion that the leaders of the majority opposed 
all disarmament. Contrary to the militaristic 
theories of security through armaments the 
peopl=s' democracies viewed disarmament as a 
first step without which firm international co­
operation was impossible. The USSR proposal 
required responsible States to give minimum 
proofs of their goodwill and thus was a realistic 
and constructive step. States must be enabled 
to rid themselves of the burden of armaments and 
thus to hasten economic progress and to free 
humanity from the fear of war. For these 
reasons he supported the USSR proposal and 
appealed for its adoption. 

Mr. TsiANG (China) said that since the question 
of atomic weapons had been discussed previously, 
he would concentrate on the part of the USSR 
proposal calling for a reduction by one-third 
within one year, of all present land, naval and 
air forces of the five permanent members of the 
Security Council. Comparing Eastern Asia and 
Europe in the period between wars, he noted two 
common factors of fundamental importance : 
(1) an imperialist and expansionist aggressor, 
Germany in Europe and Japan in Asia; (2) total 
unpreparedness. In some cases this second 
factor stemmed from a lack of war potential and 
in other cases from pacifism. These two factors 
and the absence of a strong international autho­
rity had made global war inevitable. 

The men who had drafted the Charter had tried 
to find an answer for such imperialistic aggression. 
They considered that there was no security in 
individual national armaments and offered in the 
Charter : (1) a Security Council which was given 
the primary responsibility for the maintenance of 
international peace and security and the decisions 
of which the Members of the United Nations 
agreed to accept and carry out ; and (2) a common 
international force to be placed at the disposal of 
the Security Council. 

In his opmwn that formula was still valid. 
The trouble was that the Security Council was 
not permitted to function because of the abusive 
use of the " veto " and, secondly, that the Mili­
tary Staff Committee had failed to reach agree­
ment on the establishment of an international 

de la peur supposait une reduction universelle 
des armements, de manii~re qu'aucune nation ne 
flit a meme de commettre une agression, et il 
constate qu'aujourd'hui les representants ame­
ricains affirment precisement le contraire. 

Les arguments de M. McNeil (153e seance) et 
de Sir Hartley Shawcross (154e seance), selon 
lesquels Ia proposition sovietique favoriserait 
I'URSS, en taut que pays qui a desarme le moins, 
ne sont pas convaincants et renferment une 
contradiction. Toutefois, il importe de souligner 
que le rejet de Ia proposition de l'URSS mene a 
Ia conclusion que les dirigeants de Ia majorite 
s'opposent a toute tentative de desarmement. 
Contrairement aux theories militaristes de Ia 
securitc par les armements, les democraties 
populaires considerent le desarmement comme 
un premier pas sans lequel il est impossible 
d'etablir une cooperation internationale durable. 
La proposition de l'URSS demande aux Etats 
conscients de leurs responsabilites de donner des 
preuves, seraient-elles meme minimes, de leur 
bonne volonte et, en ce sens, represente une 
initiative realiste et constructive. Les Etats 
doivent avoir la possibilite de se debarrasser des 
charges que leur imposent les armements et par 
Ia meme de bater le progres economique et de 
liberer l'humanite de Ia crainte de Ia guerre. 
C'est pour ces raisons que M. Kardelj appuie Ia 
proposition de l'URSS et conjure Ia Commission 
de !'adopter. 

M. TsiANG (Chine) declare que, puisque la 
question de l'arme atomique a deja ete discutee, 
il ne s'ctendra que sur Ia partie de Ia proposition 
de l'URSS qui prevoit la reduction dans le delai 
d'un an d'un tiers de toutes les forces terrestres, 
navales et aeriennes des cinq Etats membres 
permanents du Conseil de securite. Etablissant 
une comparaison entre l'Asie de l'Est et !'Europe, 
dans Ia periode de l'entre-deux-guerres, il releve 
deux facteurs communs d'une importance 
capitale : 1) !'existence d'un agresseur aya~t. des 
visees imperialistes et poursuivant une pohtique 
d'expansion: l'Allemagne en Europe, le Japon 
en Asie ; 2) un defaut total de preparation. Ce 
dernier facteur derive dans certains cas d'une 
absence de potentiel de guerre, et, dans d'autres, 
du pacifisme. Ce sont ces deux facteurs, e~ 
!'absence d'une autorite internationale forte, qm 
ont rendu inevitable la guerre mondiale. 

Ceux qui ont elabore Ia Charte se sont efforces 
d'apporter une solution au probleme 9u~ pose 
l'agression imperialiste. Ils ont eshme . que 
I' existence d'armements nationaux dans les d1vers 
pays etait incompatible avec la securite ; c'e~t 
pourquoi ils ont prevu dans Ia Charte: 1) un Co~s.ei~ 
de securite, auquel est confie~ Ia respons~bll~t~ 
principale du maintien de Ia pmx, e~ _de Ia se~unte 
internationales, et dont les decisions d01vent 
etre reconnues et executees par ]es Etats Membres 
de !'Organisation des Nations Unies, et ?) ,une 
force armee internationale commune placee a la 
disposition du Conseil de securite. . 

L'orateur trouve que cette formule est touJours 
valable. Malheureusement, on n'a pas pe.rmis 
au Conseil de securite de remplir ses fonctwns, 
car on a abuse du droit de veto, et d'autre 
part, Ie Comite ~·e~at-m~jor n'a pu s~ n:tettre 
d'accord sur la creatwn dune force armee mter-

118 



force. The proposal of the USSR delegation did 
not remedy these difficulties ; the Chinese dele­
gation wished to stress that no scheme of disar­
mament could be expected to succeed unless it 
were accompanied by the establishment of an 
international force. 

Mr. Tsiang noted that the Commission on 
Conventional Armaments had completed items 
one and two of its plan of work and thought that 
if the USSR had not persistently obstructed the 
Commission much more progress would have been 
made. 

The Chinese delegation subscribed to the 
criticisms made by other members of the Com­
mittee of the technical difficulties of the USSR 
proposal. In addition to these general reasons 
rendering the USSR proposal unacceptable, China 
had particular reasons. The Communist Party 
of China had a large army. In spite of the 
Communist menace, the Chinese Government had 
started the demobilization of its army immedi­
ately after the war with a view to beginning 
national reconstruction. The Communists, how­
ever, had chosen to undertake armed rebellion 
against the lawful Government of China. China 
was therefore in the midst of a struggle to preserve 
its national unity. Its armed forces were not a 
contributing cause of the present world tension 
and served only to ensure domestic security. No 
scheme of disarmament would be acceptable 
which did not give due consideration to the 
requirements of domestic security. His country 
would however fulfil every duty and obligation 
under the Charter. 

Mr. CLEMENTIS (Czechoslovakia) noted that the 
attitude of suspicion toward the proposals of the 
countries of the new democracies was being 
brought forward again in connexion with the new 
USSR proposal. An attempt had been made to 
cultivate, artificially, an unhealthy distrust for 
the USSR amounting to a psychosis. An example 
was the intervention of the United States dele­
gation against the preamble of the Ecuadorean 
resolution calling for an " approach to general 
agreement" (A/C.l/311). The differences in 
the Press of the USSR and Czechoslovakia and the 
Press of the Western countries since the USSR 
proposal was presented were significant. The 
former contained news of the harvest, of indus­
trial production, of the hope for an agreement 
leading toward the reduction of armed forces. 
The Western Press was filled with reports and 
articles of a martial nature and campaigns 
advocating an increase in armaments. This war 
psychosis in the Press reflected actual prepa­
rations for war as shown by the reports in the 
London Observer showing that American re­
armament was ahead of the 1940 defence pro­
gramme. Mr. Clementis also pointed to the 
carry-over or renewal of institutions set up during 
the war to prosecute the war, which were now 
organizing war potential. The United States 
Army was being armed and equipped for attack 
on the USSR. All civilian and military research 
in the United States was directed toward offensive 
war. A heavy though not comparable burden 

nationale. La proposition qui a ete presentee par 
la delegation de l'URSS n'aplanit pas ces diffi­
cultes ; la delegation de la Chine souligne qu'on 
ne peut s'attendre ace qu'un plan de desarmement 
aboutisse, s'il ne s'accompagne pas de la creation 
d'une force armee internationale. 

M. Tsiang fait remarquer que la Commission 
des armements de type classique a termine 1' etude 
des deux premiers points qui flgurent au pro­
gramme de ses travaux. Si l'URSS n'avait pas 
entrave systematiquement les travaux de la 
Commission, celle-ci aurait realise des progres bien 
plus considerables. 

La delegation de la Chinese rallie aux critiques 
formulees par les autres membres de la Commission 
au sujet des difficultes techniques que souleve la 
proposition presentee par l'URSS. En plus de ces 
raisons d'ordre general, qui rendent inacceptable 
la proposition sovietique, la Chine a egalement 
des raisons particulieres de s'y opposer. Le parti 
communiste de la Chine possede une armee 
considerable. Malgre la menace communiste, le 
Gouvernement chinois a commence a demobiliser 
son armee immediatement apres la fin de la 
guerre, en vue d'entreprendre le relevement du 
pays. Les communistes, eux, ont prefere declencher 
une revolte armee contre le gouvernement h~gi­
time. La Chine se trouve ainsi engagee a fond dans 
une lutte dont son unite nationale est l'enjeu. 
Loin de contribuer a l'etat de tension qui existe 
actuellement dans le monde, ses forces armees ne 
sont utilisees que pour assurer la securite interieure 
du pays. La Chine n'acceptera aucun plan qui ne 
tienne dument compte des exigences de la securite 
interieure. Toutefois, elle remplira tous les devoirs 
et engagements qu'elle a contractes aux termes 
de la Charte. 

M. CLEMENTIS (Tchecoslovaquie) fait remarquer 
que !'attitude de suspicion a l'egard des propo­
sitions presentees par les pays de la nouvelle 
democratie se manifeste de nouveau a !'occasion 
de la proposition que vient de soumettre l'URSS. 
On entretient artificiellement, a l'egard de l'URSS, 
une mefiance malsaine qui equivaut a une veri­
table psychose. C'est ainsi que la delegation des 
Etats-Unis d'Amerique s'est opposee au pream­
bule de la resolution presentee par l'Equateur, 
preambule oil il etait question de (( la realisation 
d'un accord general» (A/C.l /311). De puis que 
l'Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques a 
presente sa proposition, on peut relever une 
difference significative entre le ton de la presse 
en URSS et en Tchecoslovaquie et le ton de la 
presse dans lespays occidentaux. Les journauxde 
l'URSS et de la Tchecoslovaquie publient des 
informations sur la recolte et la production 
industrielle, et se declarent en faveur d'un accord 
tendant a Ia reduction des forces armees. Par 
contre, les journaux des pays occidentaux publient 
a foison des informations et des articles de nature 
militaire et menent campagne en faveur d'une 
augmentation des armements. Cette psychose de 
guerre, qui se manifeste dans la presse, correspon? 
a des preparatifs auxquels on se livre effech­
vement ; cela est illustre par les informations 
parues dans le London Observer, qui montrent que 
le rearmement des Etats-Unis d'Amerique est 
en avance sur le programme de defense de .1940. 
M. Clementis signale egalement que les orgamsmes 

119 



of armaments was also being borne by other 
countries impoverished or damaged during the 
war. 

In the circumstances, the Committee was being 
told that the whole world lived in dread of the 
USSR but the man on the street as well as the 
responsible statesmen in the \Vest were well 
aware that the USSR did not want war. After 
such statements as that by l\Ir. Charles E. Salzman, 
United States Assistant Secretary of State, on 
8 October, that it might not be possible to avoid 
war with the USSR, the peoples' democracies 
were more warranted in distrusting the peace­
loving speeches before the Committee. 

It had been argued that acceptance of the 
USSR proposal must be subject to the introduction 
of effective control but this control was an integral 
part of the proposal itself. Since the working out 
of details might require protracted negotiations, 
there must be an agreement on the principle, 
that is, on the reduction of armed forces. No 
other concrete proposal which could stop the mad 
armaments race had been put forward and an 
agreement of the five Powers on this question 
would be accepted with confidence and hope. To 
say that such an agreement would not be kept 
simply proved that certain countries did not 
intend to fulfil their solemn obligations unless 
there were established a control requiring deep 
inroads into the sovereignty of States. The 
question of control was not such a complex affair 
as it had been pictured and the acceptance or 
non-acceptance of the USSR proposal would 
depend exclusively on whether the Powers 
concerned were prepared to accept the idea of 
reducing their armed forces at all. 

The meeting rose at 13.05 hours. 

HUNDRED AND FIFTY-SIXTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Monday, 11 October 1948, at 3 p.m. 
Chairman : Mr. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivia). 

20. Continuation of the discussion on 
the prohibition of the atomic weapon 
and the reduction by one-third of the 
armaments and armed forces of the 
permanent members of the Security 
Council: item proposed by the Union 
of Soviet Socialist Republics (A/658) 

Mr. PIPINELIS (Greece) reminded the Committee 
that all weapons in themselves were a potential 

qui avaient ete crees pendant la guerre a des fins 
militaires ont ete maintenus ou remis en activite 
et qu'ils procedent actuellement a l'organisatio~ 
des ressources militaires. On est en train d'armer 
et d'equiper l'armee des Etats-Unis d'Amerique 
en vue d'une attaque contre l'URSS. Tous les 
travaux de recherche entrepris aux Etats-Unis 
d'Amerique, a titre civil ou militaire, s'inspirent 
d'une strategic offensive. D'autres pays, qui 
pourtant ont ete appauvris ou devastes par la 
guerre, maintiennent eux aussi, bien qu'a une 
echelle plus modeste, des armements considerables. 

C'est dans ces conditions qu'on vient declarer a 
la Commission que le monde entier vit dans la 
terreur que lui inspirerait l'URSS ; mais les 
simples citoyens aussi bien que les hommes d'Etat 
eminents des pays occidentaux savent parfai­
tement que l'URSS ne desire pas la guerre. Or, le 
8 octobre dernier, M. Charles E. Salzman, Secre­
taire d'Etat adjoint des Etats-Unis d'Amerique, 
a declare qu'il serait peut-etre impossible d'eviter 
la guerre avec I'URSS ; et certes, de telles decla­
rations sont de nature a inspirer aux pays de la 
democratic populaire une mefiance justiflee a 
l'egard des discours pacifistes que l'on prodigue a 
la Commission. 

On a soutenu que !'acceptation de la propo­
sition presentee par l'URSS devait etre subor· 
donnee a !'institution d'un controle efficace ; 
pourtant, ce dernier fait partie integrante de la 
proposition. La mise au point des details peut 
exiger des conversations prolongees ; il faut done 
parvenir a un accord portant sur le principe meme 
de Ia reduction des forces armees. On n'a soumis 
aucune autre proposition concrete qui fut capable 
d'arreter la course forcenee aux armements; 
pourtant, Ia conclusion d'un accord entre les cinq 
Puissances serait accueillie avec confiance et 
espoir. En pretendant que cet accord ne serait pas 
respecte, on prouve tout bonnement que certains 
pays n'ont pas !'intention de remplir les obligations 
solennelles qu'ils ont assumees, a moins que l'on 
n'institue un controle qui empiE~terait conside· 
rablement sur la souverainete des Etats. La 
question du controle n'est pas aussi complexe 
qu'on l'a dit, et !'acceptation ou le rejet de Ia 
proposition soumise par l'URSS dependra exclu­
sivement d'une chose, a savoir : les Puissances 
interessees voudront-elles accepter le principe 
meme de la reduction de leurs forces armees ? 

La seance est levee a 13 h. 05. 

CENT-CINQUANTE-SIXIEME 
SEANCE · 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le lundi 11 octobre 1948, a 15 heures. 

President: M. CosTA nu RELs (Bolivie). 

20. Suite de la discussion sur !'inter­
diction de l'arme atomique et la 
reduction d 'un tiers des armements 
et des forces armees des . inembres 
permanents du Conseil de securite: 
point propose ~ar. l'Union ~?~ Re­
publiques soc1ahstes sov1et1ques 
(A/658) 

M. PIPINELIS (Grece) rappelle qu.e toute arme 
constitue en elle-meme un danger v1rtuel pour la 

120 




